

INVITATION TO TENDER FOR Microsoft 365 Roll -Out

DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION: 7th May 2023 (midnight)

Table of Contents

1	Instructions	and Information	for Tendering	Process
---	--------------	-----------------	---------------	----------------

- 1.1 Timetable and Administration Arrangements
- 1.2 Submission of Tender Documents
- 1.3 Sufficiency of Tender
- 1.4 Form of Tender
- 1.5 Validity of Tender
- 1.6 Amendments to the Tender documents FNHC
- 1.7 Questions/Clarifications Arising during the Tender Process
- 1.8 Acceptance of Tenders
- 1.9 Inducements

2 Conditions of Contract

- 2.1 FNHC Standard Terms and Conditions
- 2.2 Other Terms and Conditions

3 Specification

- 3.1 Outline
- 3.2 Detail

4 Tender Assessment and Evaluation

- 4.1 Evaluation of Tenders (Compliance)
- 4.2 Evaluation of Tenders (Selection)
- 4.3 Evaluation of Tenders (Award)
- 4.4 Further Clarification
- 4.5 Variant Bids
- 4.6 Confidentiality
- 4.7 Conflict of Interest
- 4.8 Consortia

5 Structure and Format of Response

- 5.1 Introduction
- 5.2 Approach to the Contract (Quality Control)
- 5.3 Project Resourcing



6 Pricing Proposals

7 Supplier Questionnaire

- 7.1 General Information
- 7.2 Consortia Information
- 7.3 Insolvency and Criminal Proceedings
- 7.4 Financial Information
- 7.5 Insurance Information
- 7.6 Technical and Professional Capability
- 7.7 Equalities
- 7.8 Health and Safety
- 7.9 Information Security Policy
- 7.10 Environmental Sustainability Policy

8 Form of Tender

9 Non-Collusion Certificate

Appendix 1 –Standard Terms & Conditions



Section 1

Instructions and information on tender process

These instructions are designed to ensure that all tenders are given equal and fair consideration. It is important, therefore, that bidders provide all the information asked for in the format and order specified. If there is any doubt as to what is required, or if bidders have difficulty in providing the information requested, they should contact 365.tenders@fnhc.org.je in accordance with the procedure for raising queries set out in 2.2 below:

1.1 Timetable and Administration Arrangements

The envisaged key milestones for the tender are shown in the table below.

No	Event	Date
1	Issue of ITT	3 April 2023
2	Final Date for receipt of any tenderer's questions	14 April 2023
4	Responses to questions circulated	17 April 2023
5	Deadline for return of tenders	7 May 2023 (midnight)
6	Evaluation of tenders	17 May 2023
7	Presentation and interviews	22 May 2023
8	Award notice issued	26 May 2023
10	Commencement of contract	24 June 2023
11	Completion of Works	24 March 2024

1.2 Submission of Tender Documents

1.2.1 Your completed response should be submitted by the due date and time required:

Date: 7 May 2023 Time: Midnight. Responses should be submitted in an electronic format addressed to the following email addresses: 365.tenders@fnhc.org.je

In order to overcome file size difficulties we request that tender submissions are supplied as PDFs.

- 1.2.2 It is the sole responsibility of the submitting company to deliver their response as specified.
- 1.2.3 Late responses will not be accepted.
- 1.2.4 Family Nursing & Home Care takes no responsibility for identifying any clerical errors or misunderstanding in any tenders submitted. Tenderers must therefore ensure that the content of any Tender submitted is complete and accurate.



1.3 Sufficiency of Tender

- 1.3.1 The Contractor shall be deemed to have satisfied themselves before submitting their Tender as to the correctness and sufficiency of the rates and prices stated by them in their Tender which shall cover all their obligations under the Contract.
- 1.3.2 If Family Nursing & Home Care suspects there has been an error in pricing or calculation in a Tender, it reserves the right to seek such clarification as it considers necessary from that Tenderer only.

1.4 Form of Tender

1.4.1 All entries entered by the Tenderer on the Form of Tender, and other submitted information, must be typewritten. All prices must be specified in pounds sterling, exclusive of GST. All Tender Forms must be signed by the Tenderer in a proper manner by a Director or the Secretary of a Company.

1.5 Validity of Tenders

1.5.1 All Tenders will remain open for acceptance by Family Nursing & Home Care for 3 calendar months from the date fixed for lodgement of Tender. All Tenders must be submitted on this basis.

1.6 Amendments to the tender documents by FNHC

1.6.1 FNHC reserves the right to amend the enclosed tender documents at any time prior to the deadline of receipt of tenders. Where amendments are significant, FNHC may at its discretion extend the deadline for receipt of tenders.

1.7 Questions/Clarifications Arising during the Tender Process

- 1.7.1 Family Nursing & Home Care will endeavour to answer any questions the Tenderer may have regarding the Tender, to be submitted prior to the stipulated date.
- 1.7.2 Questions relating to the site and technical specifics should be sent to the email address labelled Questions by 14 April 2023 365.tenders@fnhc.org.je

1.7.3 Latest date to request clarification or ask questions – 14 April 2023 midday



1.8 Acceptance of Tenders

- 1.8.1 The invitation to tender expresses the current intentions of FNHC with regard to this contract. It does not constitute an offer capable of acceptance. Its purpose is to obtain proposals from selected potential suppliers.
- 1.8.2 FNHC is not bound to accept the lowest tender and reserves the right to accept any tender in whole or part. FNHC reserves the right to discontinue this tender process at any time. Any Contract(s) awarded will be on the basis of the Tender Assessment and Evaluation in Part 5.
- 1.8.3 FNHC shall in no circumstances be liable for any costs involved in the preparation of a Tender.
- 1.8.4 A Tender shall only be accepted by FNHC by issue of a Contract Award Letter by FNHC.

1.9 Inducements

1.9.1 Offering any inducement of any kind in relation to obtaining this or any other contract with FNHC will disqualify the relevant tender from being considered.



Section 2

Terms and Conditions applying to this tender

2.1 FNHC Standard Terms and Conditions of Contract

2.1.2 This contract will be awarded using the Family Nursing & Home Care's standard terms and conditions, which will be implemented with the winning bidder. The FNHC Standard Terms and Conditions are included as Appendix 1 to this document.

2.2 Other Terms and Conditions

- 2.2.1 The Supplier agrees to indemnify the Purchaser fully and to hold it harmless at all times from and against all actions, proceedings, claims, expenses, awards, costs and all other liabilities whatsoever in any way connected with or arising from or relating to the provision or disclosure of information permitted under this Clause.
- 2.2.2 In the event that the information provided by the Supplier in accordance with this Clause becomes inaccurate, whether due to changes to the employment and personnel details of the affected employees made subsequent to the original provision of such information or by reason of the Supplier becoming aware that the information originally given was inaccurate, the Supplier shall notify the Purchaser of the inaccuracies and provide the amended information. The Supplier shall be liable for any increase in costs the Purchaser may incur as a result of the inaccurate or late production of data.
- 2.2.3 The provisions of this Condition 2.2 shall apply during the continuance of this Contract and after its termination howsoever arising.

Section 3

Specification

3.1 Contract Term

3.1.1 The contract will operate from <u>24th June 2023</u> until <u>24 March 2024</u>, with the possibility of extension with no further tender requirement.



Part One - High Level Specification

3.2 Sustainability

3.2.1 Family Nursing & Home Care recognises its responsibility to carry out its procurement activities in an environmentally and socially responsible manner. FNHC will strive to incorporate environmental and social considerations into our services selection process. We recognise that it is our responsibility to encourage our suppliers and contractors to minimise negative environmental and social effects with the products and services they provide. FNHC will also strive to ensure that local and smaller suppliers are not discriminated against in the procurement process and specifications.

3.3 Review/Performance Meetings

- 3.3.1 Regular review/performance meetings will take place via video/conference call, with frequent face to face reviews taking place either on site or at the Contractors premises as agreed. FNHC requires that the following Contractor's staff attend these meetings:
 - Account Manager of the Agency
 - Key specialists for each element of the contract
- 3.3.2 The Contractor will provide the following information for each meeting:
 - Agenda and dial in details
 - Review of performance (through documentation or online software)
 - · Actions, issues or industry updates
 - Key priorities for week/month team workloads

This information will be required at least the day before the meeting takes place.

3.4 Non-Performance

- 3.4.1 Default notices and Notices of Unsatisfactory Performance will be applied.
- 3.4.2 If the Contractor receives 6 default notices in any 3 month period, then FNHC reserves the right to terminate the contract.

3.5 Emergencies

3.5.1 The successful Contractor will be expected to respond to all emergencies by providing 24/7 support as appropriate.

3.6 Site

3.6.1 All work within the scope of this tender is to cover all our staff in all our sites alongside the brand of the FNHC.



Part Two - Schedule of Services

Organisation Background

Family Nursing & Home Care is a Jersey Charity. We raise money through donations, fundraising activities and legacies and we are contracted by the Government of Jersey for the provision of services. Our ethos is to help islanders Start Well, Live Well and Age Well.

We provide expert prenatal and parental care and we support children, young people, families and the members of our community who need healthcare or support in their homes. Our Services range from the Baby Steps programme, Community Children's Nursing, School Nursing, District Nursing, Health Visiting, Home Care, Rapid Response and Reablement, Palliative Care and End of Life Care.

Kindness is a priority: to our patients, clients, partners and each other. Our nurses and colleagues work with islanders to understand their needs, applying our expertise to deliver the best possible care with dignity at the core of our service. We have the courage to do things differently and strive to provide innovation and new levels of care to the community.

Our carers have earned the trust of our community and with over 100 years of experience in providing care across Jersey, we know what we are talking about. "When you need us we will be there."

Website: www.fnhc.org.je



Project Overview & Requirements

Family Nursing & Home Care (FNHC) have a services agreement with Government of Jersey (GoJ). GoJ provide information technology (IT) services including infrastructure, applications and support services.

Through a project in 2022/2023, replacing the Finance ledger, FNHC have established their own Microsoft 365 tenant (with charity status) – within the GoJ infrastructure.

The aim of this project is to transfer all staff to the established 365 tenant (mail and data) and provide training on the new way of working within 365 set up. In addition, FNHC will require post project service support.

Expected timeline is for the below to completed within 9 months from date of engagement.

Key areas expected to be included:

Discovery

Review current set up, structure etc.

Migration (can be consider in two stages for email and file data)

- Email mail box migration, including shared mailboxes
- File Data on server. With regards to files currently, FNHC keep their file data in a dedicated file share
 hosted on a GoJ file server. The file share is logically separated from GoJ data, therefore migration of FNHC
 data to 365 for GoJ should not prove to be problematic. Discovery process will be needed in terms of
 managing what is migrated etc. and the requirements to access archived data to be reviewed.
- Security data/backup

Training

• Team specific, FNHC is organisation of over 170 staff, with multi-disciplinary teams, the expectation is that the teams may use 365 differently. Therefore the training is key in terms of FNHC using 365 to the optimum.

Communication plan

Post project – service contract for support

• Ongoing support for 365 Tenant is requirement once in 'business as usual' stage. Please include in proposal if this a service which can be offered from your organisation.



Service Requirements

The Provider should preferably be certified to deliver the Microsoft FastTrack Ready Service and have Silver or Gold partner status in all of the following 10 areas: cloud productivity, collaboration and content, communications, enterprise mobility management, messaging, security, windows and devices, data analytics, application development, cloud platform.

FNHC also requires a provider that can provide the following:

- Full audit of current accounts
- Full audit of past performance
- Keyword targeting & prioritisation Review messaging & ad structure to deliver higher CTR & Conversion
- Testing plan to expand reach & improve performance
- Planning & Reporting
- Forecasting & Budget Spend maximising budget

Essential information for consideration:

Access to digital platforms & security considerations

The winning supplier will have full edit and review access to all of our channels post signing of an NDA agreement and contractual agreement.

- This access shall include: all social media channels, Google Suite (including Ads, analytics, GMB & GTM etc)
- All digital platforms and real estate will remain the ownership of and no accounts are to be created or transferred into the winning supplier's intellectual property
- Any digital platform, view or account created on behalf of the client should be done in the name and ownership of FNHC – with ownership of all data belonging to FNHC
- This access will be removed and contract terminated if there is any breech of the conditions as mapped out in the contractual agreement
- The supplier is to have a working relationship with the clients IT department to ensure all of our platforms remain secure and fully operational – this may include external agency/organisation liaison on our behalf.

• Timescales for completion & duration of the contract.

This is initially a 6 month contract, with the possibility to extend. A full review process will take place toward the end of the contract with new KPIs set out and a review from both sides.



Condition of any assets

Any assets created are the property of FNHC and any work undertaken will be on behalf of the client. Any use of any assets or materials attaining to the client will need to have prior agreement from the client.

Frequency of service required

There is a budget set for the provision of this service (depending on costs, contract & performance) and we are looking for recommendations around monthly time/days/budget required to adequately complete the brief – this tender is looking for the best value for money & quality of work for the budget available.

KPIs & Reporting

- o Methods of reporting are to be agreed upon appointment and to be added into the contract schedule
- Meetings, reviews and audits to be agreed upon appointment and to be added into the contract schedule
- KPIs to be outlined in the contract schedule, however clear monthly targets to be confirmed and added to the contract post sign due to the need of the appointed agency doing a full audit of the current digital landscape.

Section 4

Tender Assessment and Evaluation

4.1 Evaluation of Tenders (Compliance)

- 4.1.1 Submitted tenders will be subject to a compliance check, selection and finally a quality and price evaluation by means of a structures process in order to determine the tender, from a suitably qualified and experienced organisation, that in FNHC's opinion offers best value to FNHC.
- 4.1.2 The initial compliance phase will include checks to ensure the documents have been properly completed and all required information has been provided.
- 4.1.3 If, during the initial compliance phase, it is apparent that a Tenderer has submitted a fundamentally non-compliant or incomplete tender then FNHC reserves the right to reject that tender and continue to assess the other tenders as appropriate.
- 4.1.4 Tenders who pass this initial screening process will thereafter be subject to further assessment as detailed below.



- 4.1.5 The evaluation process will be systematic, thorough and fair.
- 4.1.6 After the initial assessment phase, a 2-stage evaluation process will be undertaken:
 - (1) Selection Criteria
 - (2) Award Criteria

4.2 Evaluation of Tenders (Selection)

4.2.1 The Selection stage will evaluate Tenderers on the following aspects of their responses to the questionnaire in Section 7 of the Tender document.

1	General Information	Not assessed – for information only
2	Consortia Information	Not assessed – for information only
3	Insolvency and Criminal Proceedings	Pass / Fail
4	Financial Information	Pass / Fail
5	Technical and Professional Capability	Pass / Fail
6	Equalities	Pass / Fail
7	Health and Safety	Pass / Fail
8	Information Security Policy	Pass / Fail
9	Design and Creativity – Ref. Schedule of	Pass / Fail
	Services and Mandatory Criteria.	
10	Environmental and sustainability policy	Pass / Fail

- 4.2.2 Only information provided as a direct response to the questionnaires will be evaluated. Information and details which forms part of general company literature or promotional brochures etc. will not form part of the evaluation process. Marketing material should not be included unless it relates directly to the amenities proposed on any design.
- 4.2.3 All questions will be answered.
- 4.2.4 Please note that FNHC may require clarification of the answers provided or ask for additional information.
- 4.2.5 The response should be submitted by an individual of the organisation, company or partnership who has the authority to answer on behalf of that organisation, company or partnership.
- 4.2.6 Should the response be found to be erroneous or in any other way incorrect, FNHC reserves the right to disqualify the candidate from the tender.
- 4.2.7 Each of the above Selection Stage Aspects will be evaluated separately, with a mark of Pass or Fail. Tenderers will be required to pass all aspects in order to achieve an overall Pass for the Selection stage and therefore have their tender further assessed in the final evaluation phase which covers price.



4.3 Evaluation of Tenders (Award)

4.3.1 Quality - 60%

The quality element will be based on the tenderer's response to the requirements in Section 5 of the Tender document. FNHC will consider the content of the responses from each tenderer and will make a judgement on each tenderer's submission in relation to the criteria below.

4.3.2 The criteria for consideration will include:

Ref	Criteria	% Evaluation Weight
А	Approach to the Contract (How each requirement is going to be delivered & monitored)	30%
В	Technical (demonstration within the tender of agency technical ability)	30%

4.3.3 Each reply will be scored according to the assessment given in the table below:

0-2	Unacceptable – Nil or inadequate response. Fails to demonstrate an ability to meet the requirement.
3-4	Poor – Response is partially relevant and poor. The response addresses some elements of the requirement but contains insufficient/limited detail or explanation to demonstrate how the requirement will be fulfilled.
5-7	Acceptable – Response is relevant and acceptable. The response addresses a broad understanding of the requirement but may lack details of how the requirement will be fulfilled in certain areas.
8-9	Good – Response is relevant and good. The response is sufficiently detailed to demonstrate a good understanding and provides details on how the requirements will be fulfilled.
10	Excellent – Response is completely relevant and excellent overall. The response is comprehensive, unambiguous and demonstrates a thorough understanding of the requirement and provides details of how the requirement will be met in full.

4.3.4 Price - 40%

This will be determined by examination of the **Pricing Schedule and Value for Money** submitted by each tenderer.

- 4.3.5 FNHC is under no obligation to accept the lowest bid or any bid and will not be liable for costs or expenses incurred in connection with the appointment process.
- 4.3.6 The cost will be scored on the basis of lowest cost over bid cost, multiplied by the full marks available for cost under this evaluation.



4.4 Further Clarification

4.4.1 During the tender evaluation period, tenderers may be required to demonstrate their proposed solutions to representatives of FNHC and to answer questions on their bid for the purposes of clarification. The quality scores may be altered by the evaluation panel following the process of clarification through the demonstration and interview process.

All costs involved will be borne by the tenderers.

4.5 Confidentiality

4.5.1 FNHC will not disclose to any third party information that is supplied in tenders that is marked as confidential. All other information supplied by bidders to FNHC will similarly be treated in confidence except that references may be sought from banks, existing or past clients, or other referees submitted by the Bidders.

4.6 Conflict of Interest

4.6.1 Bidders are required to confirm that they are not aware of any conflict of interest or any circumstances that could give rise to a conflict of interest in the performance of the proposed Contract.

4.8 Consortia

- 4.8.1 Bids from multi-disciplinary organisations and specially formed consortia are encouraged, but all organisations in specially formed consortia must be identified in the response to the ITT. Each group or consortium will be required to nominate a lead person with whom FNHC can contract or form themselves into a single legal entity before contract award. In the case of group bidders or consortia, each service provider will be required to become jointly and severally responsible for the contract before acceptance.
- 4.8.2 If the tenderer is a group bidder or consortium, each member of the consortium must be identified separately as part of the response to this ITT.
- 4.8.3 If the tenderer is a member of a group of companies they should provide information only about themselves and not the Group as a whole (except where Group information is specifically requested by the question).



Section 5

Structure and Format of Response

5.1 Introduction

- 5.1.1 Contractors response to this tender document should follow the defined structure as outlined. Your response will be used to evaluate and score the different sections of each proposal received. All parts of this section are deemed **Essential** and require response.
- 5.1.2 The response should be presented in A4 format with an easily readable font style and size.

5.2 Approach to the Contract (Quality Control)

5.2.1 Contractors should describe how they will approach the implementation and performance of this contract with particular regard to the requirements outlined in the Schedule of Requirements. Contractors should outline their proposals for on-going quality control during the project and how they will remedy any failures.

5.3 Project Resourcing

- 5.3.1 Contractors should describe the resources that they will be deploying on this contract if they are successful, stating whether any staff resources are currently in place or will require to be recruited. They should also give indications as to the background and knowledge of key personnel who will be deployed in the delivery of this contract.
- 5.3.2 Explain any sub-contract arrangements that you will depend on to deliver the contract and explaining how you will manage this/these relationships with other stakeholders (if any).

Any Lead Times between Award of Contract and Start of Services should be highlighted.

Section 6

Pricing Proposals

Pricing Proposals should be in the following format:

6.1 As defined on page 9/10/11

Item	Description	Offer Price £ ex GST
Phase 1		



Phase 2		
	Total:	
Signature:		
Designation:		
Company:		
Date:		
Note that Pricing Proposals should be completed on behalf of the bidding organisation	d in full and must be signed by a person properly authorised to do so	
Section 7		
Supplier Questionnaire		
7.1 General Information		
7.1.1 Full legal name, address and website of t (the Prime or Single contractor):	he Potential Provider in whose name the Tender will be submitted	
(the Prime or Single contractor):	he Potential Provider in whose name the Tender will be submitted	
	he Potential Provider in whose name the Tender will be submitted	
(the Prime or Single contractor): Company Name Address from which the contract will be	he Potential Provider in whose name the Tender will be submitted	
(the Prime or Single contractor): Company Name Address from which the contract will be delivered	he Potential Provider in whose name the Tender will be submitted	
(the Prime or Single contractor): Company Name Address from which the contract will be delivered Town/City	he Potential Provider in whose name the Tender will be submitted	
(the Prime or Single contractor): Company Name Address from which the contract will be delivered Town/City Postcode	he Potential Provider in whose name the Tender will be submitted	
(the Prime or Single contractor): Company Name Address from which the contract will be delivered Town/City Postcode Country Website	he Potential Provider in whose name the Tender will be submitted	
(the Prime or Single contractor): Company Name Address from which the contract will be delivered Town/City Postcode Country Website		
(the Prime or Single contractor): Company Name Address from which the contract will be delivered Town/City Postcode Country Website 7.1.2 Name, position, telephone number and e		
(the Prime or Single contractor): Company Name Address from which the contract will be delivered Town/City Postcode Country Website 7.1.2 Name, position, telephone number and examples.		
(the Prime or Single contractor): Company Name Address from which the contract will be delivered Town/City Postcode Country Website 7.1.2 Name, position, telephone number and experience of the position		



7.1.3 Current legal status of Potential Provider (e.g. partnership, private limited company, etc.)

	Please tick one box
Sole Trader	
Partnership	
Public Limited Company	
Private Limited Company	
Public Sector (including Registered Charities, NDPBs, Housing Associations)	
Other (please state)	

7.1.4 Date and place of formation of the Potential Provider and, if applicable, registration under the Companies Act 2006¹. Please provide copies of Certificates of Incorporation (where appropriate) and any changes of name, registered office and principal place of business.

Date of Formation	
Place of Formation	
Date of Registration	
Company Registration Number	
Certificates enclosed	
Registered GST Number	
Registered Office	
Principal Place of business	

Ownership Structure

7.1.5 If the Organisation is a member of a group of companies, give the full legal name and address of the Parent/Holding Company, if applicable:

Company Name	
Address	
Town/City	
Postcode	
Country	
Company Registration Number ²	

¹ Potential Providers established outside the United Kingdom may provide equivalent information. For a list of acceptable equivalent information, please refer to Regulation 23(7) of the Public Contracts Regulations 2006.

² Or, for parent companies established outside the United Kingdom, equivalent information as set out in Regulation 23(7) of the Public Contracts Regulations 2006.



7.1.6 Full legal name and address of (ultimate) Parent/Holding Company, if applicable:

Company Name	
Address	
Town/City	
Postcode	
Country	
Company Registration Number ³	

7.1.7 If the Potential Provider is a division or subsidiary, what is the relationship with the Parent Company (e.g. 100% owned subsidiary)

Relationship	

7.1.8 Please provide a one-page chart illustrating the ownership of the Potential Provider including relationships to any parent or other group or holding companies.

Ownership structure enclosed (please tick ✓)	
,	

7.1.9 Please provide a brief history of the Potential Provider's organisation.

Brief history of the Potential Provider's organisation, no more than 400 words, including details of any parent and associated companies and any changes of ownership over the last 5 years including details of significant pending developments, changes in financial structure or ownership, prospective take-over bids, buy-outs and closures etc. which are currently in the public domain.

7.1.10 Is the Potential Provider a consortium joint venture or other arrangement? If so, and if it is available, please provide details of the constitution and percentage shareholdings.

³ Or, for parent companies established outside the United Kingdom, equivalent information as set out in Regulation 23(7) of the Public Contracts Regulations 2006.



Consortium	YES / NO (please delete)	
If yes, please complete the table below:	11.57 NO (pieuse delete)	
if yes, pieuse complete the tuble below.		
Organisation	Percentage Shareholding	
7.1.11 Registration with a professional body.		
• •	rider registered with the appropriate trade or profession lished (as set out in Annex IX B of Directive 2004/18/EC) state ⁴).	
Evidence of Registration with appropriate pr <i>insert required details or state 'None'</i>	ofessional/trade body Either	
insert required details of state from		
7.1.2 GST registration number		
GST Registration Number		
7.2 Consortia Information		
to sub-contract they should answer questions 7 the intention to sub-contract at later stages in	n 7.2.1. Where a Potential Provider at this stage of the p 7.2.2 and 7.2.3 below. Where a Potential Provider becom the procurement they are required to notify FNHC of this Where a Potential Provider is a consortium, they should	nes aware of s and provide
7.2.1 Please tick the box below which applie	s:	
	3000000000	
(a) Your organisation is bidding to provide a ticked, go to Section 3)	ll the services required itself (if	

⁴ In the UK this condition is satisfied by registration with Companies House or a declaration on oath that the candidate is carrying on business in the trade in question in the UK at a specific place of business and under a specific trading name.



	_	tion is bidding in d parties to pro			ntractor a	nd intends		
(c) T	he Potential	Provider is a cor	nsortium					
7.2.2		n name) the role					nserting the releval r potentially undert	
Requ	irement	Company/Org	anisation				requirement and ectly deliver (%)	
Meth	nodology for	procuring supply	y chain (no m	ore than		s)		
7.3.1	Has the org	anisation or any	of the direct	ors, partr	-	-	in a state of bankruct to relevant proce	
		Υ	es 🔲	No				
7.3.2 H	_	isation or any of or professional		s, partner	s or propr	ietors been co	onvicted of a crimina	al offence related
		Ye	s \square	No				



If you are completing the questionnaire as a primary contractor, please confirm this in section 3 for all your proposed consortium members and any other third parties you are considering using to provide the service to Family Nursing & Home Care.



7.4 Financial Information

or

or

and

and

7.4.1	Please provide the following financial information or an explanation as to why this
	information cannot be provided:

- (a) A copy of the most recent audited accounts for your organisation that cover the last three years of trading or for the period that is available if trading for less than three years.
- (b) A statement of the organisation's turnover, Profit & Loss and cash flow position for the most recent full year of trading (or part year if full year not applicable) and an end period balance sheet, where this information is not available in an audited form at (a).
- (c) Where (a) and (b) cannot be provided, a statement of the organisation's cash flow forecast for the current year and a bank letter or statement from the relevant Director or Accountant outlining the current cash and credit facility position.
- (d) If the organisation is a subsidiary of a group, (a) or (c) are required for both the subsidiary and the ultimate parent company. Where a consortium or association is proposed the information is requested for each member company.
 - (e) Please provide a statement of the organisation's turnover that relates directly to the supply of this service for the past three years, or for the period the organisation has been trading (if less than three years) in the boxes below:

Year Ended			
Turnover			
(£)	£	£	£

7.4.2 Parent company and/or other guarantees of performance and financial standing may be required if considered appropriate as well as confirmation of the organisation's willingness to arrange for a guarantee or a performance bond.

Where the potential provider is dependent financially on a parent company to support its application for this procurement, it must indicate in the box below whether a Parent Guarantee is available if requested.

	Where required, Parent Guarantee available?	YES / NO (please delete)
١		

7.4.3 Name and address of principal banker:

Bank Name	
Address	
Town/City	
Postcode	



Telephone			
Email Address			
	·		
If requested, would you be willing to per a Banker's reference?	rovide YES / NO (please o	delete)	
7.4.4 Has your business met the term past year?	ns of its banking contracts o	r any loan arrangements or mortgages dur	ing the
Yes [□ No □		
If the answer is no, please provide reas and state what action has been taken b to rectify the situation?			
7.4.5 Has your business met all its obl landlord/licensor during the pas	_	s as they fall due to its suppliers, staff and/o	or
If the answer is no, please provide reas and state what action has been taken be to rectify the situation?			

7.5 Technical or Professional Capability

Bidders are required to provide evidence of having the necessary capacity and capability to deliver the requirements of the contract.

Bidding organisations may demonstrate their experience in delivering goods, services and works similar to the current contract using examples from:

Within their own organisation (bidders may rely on experience of personnel that they intend to use to carry
out the current requirement, even if that experience was gained whilst working for a different organisation)



- Other consortium members (where a consortium bid is being proposed)
- Named sub-contractors (where sub-contractors are being used and their identity is known)

7.6.1 Please provide two examples below:

Please provide your first relevant example that demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant	
consortium members and/or named sub-contractors	
experience in delivering similar goods, services or works	
to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For	
goods and services contracts your examples must be	
from within the last three years and for works contracts	
your examples must be from within the last five years.	
The information you provide should cover the following	
areas:	
 A description of the goods, works or services delivered; 	
Contract value and dates;	
 Previous or current customer details; 	
• Details of where you have been able to demonstrate	
added value through the adoption of innovative	
solutions.	
Either use the space provided or attach a document to	
your response, which should be no longer than 2 pages	
of A4	
Please provide your second relevant example that	
Please provide your second relevant example that demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For goods and services contracts your examples must be	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For goods and services contracts your examples must be from within the last three years and for works contracts	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For goods and services contracts your examples must be	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For goods and services contracts your examples must be from within the last three years and for works contracts your examples must be from within the last five years.	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For goods and services contracts your examples must be from within the last three years and for works contracts your examples must be from within the last five years. The information you provide should cover the following areas:	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For goods and services contracts your examples must be from within the last three years and for works contracts your examples must be from within the last five years. The information you provide should cover the following	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For goods and services contracts your examples must be from within the last three years and for works contracts your examples must be from within the last five years. The information you provide should cover the following areas: • A description of the goods, works or services	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For goods and services contracts your examples must be from within the last three years and for works contracts your examples must be from within the last five years. The information you provide should cover the following areas: • A description of the goods, works or services delivered; • Contract value and dates;	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For goods and services contracts your examples must be from within the last three years and for works contracts your examples must be from within the last five years. The information you provide should cover the following areas: • A description of the goods, works or services delivered; • Contract value and dates; • Previous or current customer details;	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For goods and services contracts your examples must be from within the last three years and for works contracts your examples must be from within the last five years. The information you provide should cover the following areas: • A description of the goods, works or services delivered; • Contract value and dates; • Previous or current customer details; • Details of where you have been able to demonstrate	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For goods and services contracts your examples must be from within the last three years and for works contracts your examples must be from within the last five years. The information you provide should cover the following areas: • A description of the goods, works or services delivered; • Contract value and dates; • Previous or current customer details;	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For goods and services contracts your examples must be from within the last three years and for works contracts your examples must be from within the last five years. The information you provide should cover the following areas: • A description of the goods, works or services delivered; • Contract value and dates; • Previous or current customer details; • Details of where you have been able to demonstrate added value through the adoption of innovative solutions.	
demonstrates your organisations, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-contractors experience in delivering similar goods, services or works to the requirements of this procurement exercise. For goods and services contracts your examples must be from within the last three years and for works contracts your examples must be from within the last five years. The information you provide should cover the following areas: • A description of the goods, works or services delivered; • Contract value and dates; • Previous or current customer details; • Details of where you have been able to demonstrate added value through the adoption of innovative	



7.6.2

In relation to two examples above, please attach	
confirmation that the requirements were delivered	
successfully e.g. acceptance/completion certificates or	
customer written declaration (if available)	
7.6.3	
Please provide a statement of the technical resources	
such as the tools, plant, facilities and technical	
equipment available to your organisation, or, where relevant consortium members and/or named sub-	
contractors in relation to the delivery of this contract.	
Please refer to the Specification in Section 3 of this	
document	
Guidance – The buyer will use the information you	
provide to evaluate whether your organisation,	
consortium members and/or named sub-contractors	
have the required technical resources to deliver the	
requirement.	
Please confirm whether or not your organisation, consortium members have:	
Defaulted on the delivery of a contract within the last 3 years (goods and services) or 5 years (works)	
Had a contract cancelled, or not renewed, for failure	
to perform within the last 3 years (goods and	
services) or 5 years (works	
If any of the above applies, please provide an	
explanation of the action you have taken to prevent a	
re-occurrence	
Guidance – The buyer will use the information to	
determine whether you have a successful record of	
delivery.	

7.6 Equalities

7.7.1 Does your organisation comply with your statutory obligations under the Equality Act	t zutu:
--	---------

Yes	No	
-----	----	--

7.7.2 If relevant to the status of your organisation, i.e. if you have more than 5 staff, please attach a copy of your Equality and Diversity policy and/or equal opportunities policy with your response



7.7.3 In the last three years has any finding of unlawful discrimination been made against your business or organisation by any court or Employment Tribunal, an Employment Appeal Tribunal or any other court comparable proceedings in a jurisdiction other than the UK)?						
	Yes	No				
If you answered 'yes' to the a summary of the finding or what action you have taken unlawful discrimination from Guidance – Buyer may not be to tender if it has been foun discriminated in the last three provided compelling evidence and appropriate action to pediscrimination reoccurring 7.7.4 In the last three year Equality and Human	judgement and exp to prevent similar in reoccurring. The able to select a big to have unlawfully the years unless it has the that it has taken in the revent similar unlaws	dder s robust rful	-		-	-
than the UK), on grou	~		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Comparable	body in the juris	diction other
	Yes	No				
If you answered 'yes', provious nature of the investigation a outcome (so far) of the investigation upheld the coronganisation, provide an expectification in the investigation of the investigation upheld the coronganisation, provide an expectification from re-occur discrimination from re-occur discrimination from re-occur for a complaint is upheld following to prevent similar unlawful or reoccurring	and an explanation of stigation. If the mplaint against your planation of what acrevent unlawful rring. The able to select a bid pwing investigation, ate action has been to select a to select a to select action has been to select a to select action has been to select a to select action has been to select action actions.	of the				

Does your organisation have a written Health and Safety Policy?

7.8.1



		Yes		No				
7.8.2	Does your organisation	on ensure	e compliand	ce with t	the Health	and Safety at Wor	k Act 1974?	
		Yes		No				
7.9	Information Seco	urity Po	olicy					
7.9.1	Does your firm have a Data Protection, Free					•		
		Yes		No				
Please	e provide details							
7.9.2	Please provide any fu any additional skills o value/ benefit for FNI	r process			_	•		
Please	e provide details							

Section 8

Form of Tender

To: FNHC

Dear Sir/Madam

TENDER FOR:



- 1. I/We* the undersigned DO HEREBY UNDERTAKE on the acceptance by FNHC of my/our* tender to supply and/or deliver the goods and/or services on such terms and conditions and in accordance with such specifications as are contained or incorporated in the invitation to tender.
- 2. Any prices, rates or discounts quoted in this tender are valid for 90 days after the tender return date and we confirm that the terms of the tender will remain binding upon us and may be accepted by you at any time before the expiry of that period.

Signed	
Name	
Position in Organisation	
Duly authorised to sign tenders for and on behalf of [Name]	
Registered Address	
Nationality of Company	
Date	

Section 9

Certificate of Non-Collusion

TA.	ENILC
TO:	FNHC

RE:



The essence of the public procurement process is that FNHC shall receive bona fide competitive tenders from all Tenderers. We, the undersigned, hereby certify that this is a bona fide bid and (except as authorised in the Invitation to Tender) we have not, and insofar as we are aware neither has any of our (or any of our proposed sub-contractors) officers, employees, servants or agents:

- (a) Entered into any agreement with any other person with the aim of preventing bids being made or as to the fixing or adjusting of the amount of any bid or the conditions on which any bid is made; or
- (b) Informed any other person, other than the person calling for this bid, of the amount or the approximate amount of the bid, except where the disclosure, in confidence, of the amount of the bit was necessary to obtain quotations necessary for the preparation of the bid for insurance, for performance bonds and/or contract guarantee bonds or for professional advice required for the preparation of the bid; or
- (c) Caused or induced any person to enter into such an agreement as is mentioned in paragraph (a) above or to inform us of the amount or the approximate amount of any rival bid for the Contract; or
- (d) Committed an offence under any applicable laws, statutes, regulations and codes relating to antibribery and anti-corruption including but not limited to the Bribery Act 2010; or
- (e) Offered or agreed to pay or give any sum of money, inducement or valuable consideration directly or indirectly to any person for doing or having done or causing or having caused to be done in relation to any other Bid or proposed Bid for the works any act or omission; or
- (f) Canvassed any other persons referred to in paragraph (a) above in connection with the Contract; or
- (g) Contacted any staff of FNHC about any aspect of the contract including (but without limitation) for the purposes of discussing the possible transfer to the employment of the Tenderer of such officer or agent for the purposes of the Framework Contract or for soliciting information in connection with the Contract.

We also undertake that we shall not procure the doing of any of the acts mentioned in paragraphs 1 to 7 above, before the hour or date specified for the return of the bid nor (in the event of the bid being accepted) shall we do so while the resulting contract(s) continue in force between us (or our successors in title) and FNHC.

In this certificate, the word 'person' includes any person, body or association, corporate or incorporate and 'agreement' includes any arrangement whether formal or informal and whether legally binding or not



	Signe	d					
Name Position in Organisation							
	For ar	nd behalf of					
	Date						
			Appendix 1 THIS AGREEMENT is made on	[] 2023			
E	BETWE	EN					
(ne Care a registered charity number 345 whose registered office r, Jersey ("the Supplier"); and	is at Le Bas,			
(2)		istered in Jersey or England and Wales with number [] who	ose registered			
E	BACKGROUND						
The Customer wishes to purchase and the Supplier wishes to supply certain services subject to the following terms and conditions.							
N	TI WO	IS AGREED as follow	s:				
1		INTERPRETATION					
1	.1	Definitions					
	I	In this Agreement the following words and expressions shall have the following meanings:					
		Charges	the Supplier's charges for the Services as set out in Sch any other sums due to the Supplier under this Agreement				
		Commencement Date	e [the date of this Agreement;]				



Confidential Information all information disclosed by or on behalf of a party (in whatever medium

including in written, oral, visual or electronic form and whether before or after the date of this Agreement) including all business, financial, commercial, technical, operational, organisational, legal, management

and marketing information;

Deliverables any documents, products and materials to be developed and provided

by the Supplier as part of or in connection with the Services, including

any products of the Services

1.2 Construction

1.2.1 In this Agreement, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires:

- (a) words importing the singular only shall include the plural and vice versa;
- (b) words importing the whole shall be treated as including a reference to any part;
- (c) reference to this Agreement or to any other document is a reference to this Agreement or to that other document as modified, amended, varied, supplemented, assigned, novated or replaced from time to time as permitted by the provisions of this Agreement;
- (d) reference to any legal term for any action, remedy, method of judicial proceeding, legal document, legal status, court, official or any legal concept, state of affairs or thing shall in respect of any jurisdiction other than England be deemed to include that which most closely approximates in that jurisdiction to the English legal term; and
- (e) references to termination of this Agreement shall include its expiry.

2 **DURATION**

This Agreement shall come into effect on the Commencement Date and, subject to provisions for earlier termination, shall continue unless and until terminated by either party giving to the other at least [] months' notice in writing.

3 SERVICES



- 3.1 The Supplier shall provide and the Customer shall receive the Services on the terms set out in this Agreement.
- 3.2 The Supplier shall:
 - 3.2.1 co-operate with the Customer in all matters relating to the Services;
 - 3.2.2 observe all health and safety rules and regulations and any other security requirements that apply at any of the Customer's premises. The Customer reserves the right to refuse the Supplier access to the Customer's premises which is not necessary for the performance of the Services;
 - 3.2.3 notify the Customer as soon as it becomes aware of any health and safety hazards or issues which arise in relation to the Services; and
 - 3.2.4 obtain, and at all times maintain, all necessary licences and consents and comply with all relevant legislation in relation to:
 - (a) the Services and their use by the Customer (including use of the Customer's equipment and software in conjunction with the Supplier's equipment and software); and
 - (b) use by the Supplier of the Deliverables and all documents, information and materials provided by the Supplier [or its agents, subcontractors, consultants or employees], including [computer programs, data, reports and specifications.
- 3.3 The Supplier may not charge for the time it spends assessing or responding to a request from the Customer for a change to the Services except with the prior written agreement of the Customer.
- 3.4 The Supplier acknowledges that:
 - 3.4.1 it may be providing the Services for the benefit of any company in relation to which the Customer is a "group undertaking" as defined in section 1161 of the Companies Act 2006 or for the benefit of any unincorporated charity controlled by the Customer or any such company; and
 - any such company is a third party beneficiary which may enforce the terms of this Agreement in accordance with the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.



4 CUSTOMER'S OBLIGATIONS

4.1 The Customer shall:

- 4.1.1 use reasonable endeavours to co-operate with the Supplier in matters relating to the Services;
- 4.1.2 provide such access to the Customer's premises and data, and such office accommodation and other facilities as may reasonably be requested by the Supplier and agreed with the Customer in writing in advance, for the purposes of the Services;
- 4.1.3 provide such information as the Supplier may reasonably request and the Customer considers reasonably necessary, in order for the Customer to carry out the Services in a timely manner; and
- 4.1.4 inform the Supplier of all health and safety rules and regulations and any other security requirements that apply at any of the Customer's premises.
- 4.2 Actual or potential non-compliance by the Customer with any of its obligations in this clause and elsewhere shall only relieve the Supplier from performance under this Agreement:
 - 4.2.1 to the extent that it restricts or precludes performance of the Services by the Supplier, and
 - 4.2.2 if the Supplier has notified details to the Customer in writing promptly after the actual or potential non-compliance has come to its attention.

5 PERFORMANCE OF THE SERVICES

5.1 The Supplier shall:

- 5.1.1 perform the Services with reasonable skill and care and in accordance with generally recognised commercial practices and standards in the industry for similar services;
- 5.1.2 use personnel who are suitably skilled and experienced to perform tasks assigned to them, and in sufficient number to ensure that the Supplier's obligations are fulfilled:
- 5.1.3 ensure that the Services conform in all respects and at all times with any specification or description for the Services agreed by the parties and comply with all applicable legislation;
- 5.1.4 ensure that the Deliverables are of satisfactory quality; and
- 5.1.5 meet any agreed performance dates and time for performance by the Supplier shall be of the essence of this Agreement.



- 5.2 If the Supplier is in material breach of clause 5.1, the Customer may (without prejudice to any other rights it may have, including termination for material or repeated breach under clauses 13.1.1 and 13.1.2):
 - 5.2.1 refuse to accept any subsequent performance of the Services which the Supplier attempts to make;
 - 5.2.2 purchase substitute services from elsewhere;
 - 5.2.3 hold the Supplier accountable for any loss and additional costs incurred; and
 - 5.2.4 have all sums previously paid by the Customer to the Supplier under this Agreement refunded by the Supplier less a reasonable charge for provision of the Services up to the date of the breach.
- 5.3 The Customer's rights under this Agreement are in addition to the statutory terms implied in favour of the Customer by the Supply of Goods and Services Act 1982 and any other statute.
- 5.4 During the term of this Agreement and for a period of one year afterwards the Supplier shall maintain in force the following insurance policies with reputable insurance companies:
 - 5.4.1 public liability insurance with a limit of at least [[] million (£[]) per claim]; and
 - 5.4.2 professional indemnity insurance with a limit of at least [[] million (\mathfrak{L} []) for claims arising from a single event or series of related events in a single calendar year.
- 5.5 The provisions of this clause 5 shall extend to any substituted or remedial services provided by the Supplier.

6 CHARGES AND PAYMENT

6.1 In consideration of the provision of the Services, the Customer shall pay to the Supplier the Charges.

Unless specified in Schedule 2, the Customer shall be under no obligation to reimburse to the Supplier costs and expenses incurred by the Supplier in the performance of the Services.



- 6.2 Where Services are provided on a time and materials basis:
 - the Supplier's standard daily fee rates for each person are calculated on the basis of an eight-hour day, worked between 8.00 am and 5.00 pm on weekdays (excluding public holidays);
 - 6.2.2 all materials shall be supplied at cost unless specified in Schedule 2;
 - 6.2.3 the Supplier shall not be entitled to charge on a pro-rata basis for part-days worked by the Supplier's personnel unless it has the Customer's prior written consent to do so;
 - 6.2.4 the Supplier shall ensure that the Supplier's personnel complete time sheets recording time spent on the Services, and the Supplier shall use such time sheets to calculate the charges covered by each monthly invoice;
 - 6.2.5 each invoice shall set out the time spent by each of the Supplier's personnel and be accompanied by timesheets; and
 - the Supplier shall maintain complete and accurate records of the time spent and materials used by the Supplier in providing the Services in such form as the Customer shall approve. The Supplier shall allow the Customer and its agents to inspect and take copies of such records at all reasonable times on request.
- 6.3 All Charges are expressed exclusive of GST. The Customer shall pay to the Supplier, in addition to the Charges, the amount of GST (if any) which is properly chargeable by the Supplier to the Customer on or in respect of the Charges.
- 6.4 Unless otherwise specified in Schedule 2, the Charges and any reimbursable costs and expenses shall be invoiced monthly in arrears. Invoices for agreed expenses shall be payable only if accompanied by a detailed breakdown of the expenses and relevant receipts.
- 6.5 Payment of invoices in relation to which there is no bona fide dispute shall be made in full within 30 days of the date of invoice. Payment of invoices in relation to which there is a bona fide dispute shall be made within 45 days of settlement of the dispute. The time for payment of the Charges shall not be of the essence of this Agreement.
- the Supplier to the Customer against any liability of the Customer to the Supplier, whether either liability is present or future, liquidated or unliquidated, and whether or not either liability arises under this Agreement. If the liabilities to be set off are expressed in different currencies, the Customer may convert either liability at a market rate of exchange for the purpose of set-off. Any exercise by the Customer of its rights under this clause shall not limit or affect any other rights or remedies available to it under this Agreement or otherwise.



CONFIDENTIALITY

- 6.7 Each party shall use the Confidential Information of the other party disclosed to it (by whoever disclosed) only for the proper performance of its duties under the Agreement and shall not without the disclosing party's written consent disclose or permit the disclosure of the Confidential Information except in confidence for the proper performance of its duties under the Agreement to those of its employees, officers and professional advisers who need to have access to it.
- 6.8 The provisions of clause 7.1 shall not apply to Confidential Information that:
 - that information was acquired from, or from some person on behalf of, the disclosing party;
 - is in or enters the public domain through no wrongful default of the receiving party or any person on its behalf, provided that this clause 7.2.2 shall only apply from the date that the relevant Confidential Information enters the public domain;
 - 6.8.3 the receiving party receives from a third party without similar obligations of confidence in circumstances where the third party did not obtain that information as a result of a breach of an obligation of confidence; or
 - 6.8.4 is required to be disclosed by any applicable law or by order of any Court of competent jurisdiction or any government body, agency or regulatory body, to the extent of the required disclosure.
- 6.9 If the receiving party has reasonable grounds to believe that the disclosing party is involved in activity that constitutes an offence under the Bribery Act 2010, it may disclose relevant Confidential Information to the Serious Fraud Office (or other relevant government body) without informing the disclosing party of such disclosure.
- 6.10 Within three (3) days of receipt of a request to do so made at any time and in any event if the Agreement is terminated, the receiving party shall promptly return or destroy (at the option of the disclosing party) all Confidential Information of the disclosing party.

7 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

As between the Supplier and the Customer, all Intellectual Property created in the course of the Services (including in the Deliverables) which subsists now or at any time in the future shall be the exclusive property of the Customer. To the extent that any Intellectual Property created in the course of the Services vests in the Supplier, the Supplier assigns (by way of assignment of present and future rights) without payment all such Intellectual Property to the Customer with full title guarantee. If the Supplier is unable to assign such Intellectual Property (because the laws in another country differ from English law and do not permit such assignment), the Supplier shall immediately on request execute all documents that may be necessary to effect the transaction that most closely resembles the commercial intent of an assignment and is permitted in the relevant territory. Pending the above



assignments and remaining formalities relating to such assignments, the Supplier shall hold all such Intellectual Property on trust for the Customer.

8 INDEMNITY

- 8.1 The Supplier shall indemnify and hold the Customer harmless from all claims and all direct, indirect or consequential liabilities (including loss of profits, loss of business, depletion of goodwill and similar losses), costs, proceedings, damages and expenses (including legal and other professional fees and expenses) awarded against, or incurred or paid by, the Customer as a result of or in connection with:
 - 8.1.1 any alleged or actual infringement, whether or not under English law, of any third party's Intellectual Property or other rights relating to or arising out of the use of anything created in the course of providing Services; or
 - 8.1.2 any claim made against the Customer in respect of any liability, loss, damage, injury, cost or expense sustained by the Customer's employees or agents or by any customer or third party to the extent that such liability, loss, damage, injury, cost or expense was caused by, relates to or arises from the provision of the Services as a consequence of a breach or negligent performance or failure or delay in performance of this Agreement by the Supplier.

9 RISK AND TITLE IN THE DELIVERABLES AND OTHER MATERIALS

- 9.1 Title to and risk of damage to or loss of the Deliverables shall pass to the Customer on delivery.
- 9.2 All documents, equipment, drawings, specifications and all other materials and data supplied by the Customer to the Supplier shall, at all times, be and remain as between the Customer and the Supplier the exclusive property of the Customer. They shall be held by the Supplier in safe custody at its own risk and maintained and kept in good condition by the Supplier until returned to the Customer. They shall not be disposed of or used other than in accordance with the Customer's written instructions or authorisation.



10 ANTI-BRIBERY AND ANTI-CORRUPTION

10.1 The Supplier shall:

- 10.1.1 comply with all applicable laws, statutes and regulations relating to anti-bribery and anti-corruption including but not limited to the Bribery Act 2010 (**Relevant Requirements**);
- 10.1.2 not engage in any activity, practice or conduct which would constitute an offence under sections 1, 2 or 6 of the Bribery Act 2010 if such activity, practice or conduct had been carried out in the UK;
- 10.1.3 have and shall maintain in place throughout the term of this agreement its own policies and procedures, including adequate procedures under the Bribery Act 2010, to ensure compliance with the Relevant Requirements, and will enforce them where appropriate; and
- 10.1.4 promptly report to the Customer any request or demand for any undue financial or other advantage of any kind received by the Seller in connection with the performance of this Agreement.
- 10.2 Breach of this clause 11 shall be deemed a material breach.
- 10.3 For the purpose of this clause 11 the meaning of adequate procedures and foreign public official and whether a person is associated with another person shall be determined in accordance with section 7(2) of the Bribery Act 2010 (and any guidance issued under section 11 of that Act), sections 6(5) and 6(6) of that Act and section 8 of that Act respectively.

11 DATA PROTECTION

11.1 Properly notified

Each party warrants that it has made all relevant notifications in accordance with its obligations under the Data Protection (Jersey) Law 2018 to the extent required for the processing of personal data (as defined under that Law) in the performance of its obligations and exercise of its rights under this Agreement.

11.2 Compliance

The parties agree to comply with the relevant provisions of the Data Protection (Jersey) Law 2018 and any directions issued by the Information Commissioner in its processing of such personal data.

12 **TERMINATION**



12.1 This Agreement may be terminated:

- 12.1.1 immediately by either party on written notice, if the other is in material breach of an obligation under this Agreement and in the case of any such breach
 - capable of remedy has failed to remedy the breach within a period of 30 days after receipt of written notice to do so;
- 12.1.2 immediately by either party on written notice, if the other party repeatedly breaches any of the terms of this Agreement in such manner as reasonably demonstrates conduct which is inconsistent with an intention or ability to give effect to the terms of this Agreement.
- 12.1.3 immediately by either party on written notice:
 - 12.1.3.1 if the other party is dissolved or struck off the register of companies maintained by Companies House or it suspends or ceases, or threatens to suspend or cease, carrying on all or a substantial part of its business or it is removed from the Register of Companies or ceases to exist (whether or not capable of reinstatement or reconstruction);
 - 12.1.3.2 if a meeting is convened, a petition is filed, a notice is given, a resolution is passed or an order is made for or in connection with the winding up of the other party except for the purpose of a solvent reconstruction, reorganisation, merger or consolidation;
 - 12.1.3.3 if a person becomes entitled to appoint or has appointed a receiver (including fixed charge or court appointed), administrative receiver, liquidator, administrator, manager, insolvency practitioner or similar officer over the whole or a substantial part of the undertaking, property or assets of the other party;
 - 12.1.3.4 if the other party stops or suspends, or threatens to stop or suspend, payment of its debts or is unable to pay its debts as they fall due or admits inability to pay its debts or is deemed unable to pay its debts within the meaning of section 123 of the Insolvency Act 1986;
 - 12.1.3.5 if a statutory demand is presented against the other party (which is not the subject of a bona fide dispute) and remains unsatisfied for more than 21 days;
 - 12.1.3.6 if the other party commences negotiations with all or any class of its creditors with a view to rescheduling any of its debts or enters into (or proposes to enter into) a composition, scheme of arrangement or voluntary arrangement with any of its creditors or otherwise or a moratorium is agreed imposed or declared in respect of or affecting all or a material part of (or of a particular type of) the debts of the other party;



- 12.1.3.7 if notice of intention to appoint an administrator is given by any person (including the other party's directors, the other party or any qualifying floating charge holder as defined in the Insolvency Act 1986), an application is made to court or an order is made for the appointment of an administrator or if an administrator is appointed or any step is taken by any person with a view to placing the other party into administration as defined by the Insolvency Act 1986; or
- 12.1.3.8 if any event or circumstance occurs which under the law of any relevant jurisdiction has an analogous or equivalent effect to any of the events listed in clauses (a) to (g) in relation to the other party.
- 12.2 For the purposes of this clause 13:
 - 12.2.1 a breach shall be considered capable of remedy:
 - 12.2.1.1 if the party in breach can comply with the provision in question in all respects other than as to the time of performance; and
 - 12.2.1.2 if time of performance is not of the essence.
- 12.3 Termination of this Agreement for any reason, whether under this clause 13 or not, shall be without prejudice to the accrued rights and liabilities of the parties on the date of termination.
- 12.4 Upon the termination of this Agreement for any reason:
 - the Supplier shall immediately deliver to the Customer all Deliverables whether or not then complete, and return all materials of the Customer referred to in clause 10.2; and
 - the Supplier shall, if so requested by the Customer, provide all assistance reasonably required by the Customer to facilitate the smooth transition of the Services to the Customer or any replacement supplier appointed by it. In the absence of agreement, the Customer shall pay for any such assistance at the Supplier's standard time and material rates.

13 **GENERAL**

13.1 **Subcontracting and Assignment**

- 13.1.1 The Supplier may not without the prior written consent of the Customer subcontract to any other person the performance of any of the obligations undertaken by it.
- 13.1.2 The Customer may assign, transfer (in whole or in part), charge, declare a trust over or deal in any manner with this Agreement or the benefit or burden of or the rights under this Agreement.



13.1.3 The Supplier may not without the prior written consent of the Customer assign, transfer (in whole or in part), charge, declare a trust over or deal in any manner with this Agreement or the benefit or burden of or the rights under this Agreement.

13.2 Force Majeure

- 13.2.1 Neither party shall be liable to the other party for any delay or non-performance of its obligations under this Agreement to the extent that its performance is interrupted or prevented by any act or omission beyond its reasonable control.
- 13.2.2 Such delay or non-performance shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement and the time for performance shall be extended by a period equivalent to that during which performance is so prevented provided that if such delay or failure persists for sixty (60) days or more, the party not affected may, at its option and if in its opinion it is reasonable for it to do so, terminate this Agreement by giving fourteen (14) days written notice of such termination to the other party.

13.3 Amendments

No amendment of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by or on behalf of each of the parties.

13.4 Waivers and Remedies

- 13.4.1 Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of each party under this Agreement:
 - (a) are in addition to and not exclusive of any other rights or remedies under this Agreement or the general law; and
 - (b) may be waived only in writing and specifically.
- 13.4.2 Delay in exercising or non-exercise of any right under this Agreement is not a waiver of that or any other right.
- 13.4.3 Partial exercise of any right under this Agreement shall not preclude any further or other exercise of that right or any other right under this Agreement.
- 13.4.4 Waiver of a breach of any term of this Agreement shall not operate as a waiver of breach of any other term or any subsequent breach of that term.

13.5 Severance

13.5.1 If any provision of this Agreement is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, that shall not affect:



- (a) the legality, validity or enforceability in that jurisdiction of any other provision of this Agreement; or
- (b) the legality, validity or enforceability in any other jurisdiction of that or any other provision of this Agreement.

13.6 Entire Agreement

13.6.1 This Agreement:

- (a) constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement; and
- (b) supersedes and extinguishes any prior drafts, agreements, undertakings, understandings, promises or conditions, whether oral or written, express or implied between the parties relating to such subject matter.
- 13.6.2 Each party acknowledges to the other that it has not been induced to enter into this Agreement by, nor has it relied upon, any representation, promise, assurance, warranty or undertaking (whether in writing or not) by or on behalf of the other party or any other person save for those contained in this Agreement. Accordingly, each of the parties acknowledges and agrees that the only remedy available to it in respect of the subject matter of this Agreement shall be for breach of contract under the terms of this Agreement and it shall have no right of action against any other party in respect of any such representation, promise, assurance, warranty or undertaking.
- 13.6.3 This clause shall not exclude any liability which either party would otherwise have to the other or any right which either of them may have to rescind this Agreement in respect of any statements made fraudulently by the other prior to the execution of this Agreement or any rights which either of them may have in respect of fraudulent concealment by the other.
- 13.6.4 In the event of a conflict between any of the terms of this Agreement, the conflict shall be resolved according to the following descending order of priority, (i) the clauses of this Agreement, then (ii) the Schedules.

13.7 **Survival Of Obligations**

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the provisions of clauses 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13.3, 13.4, and 14 and any other clauses which expressly or impliedly survive termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever shall continue in full force and effect after termination.

13.8 No Partnership/Agency

Nothing in this Agreement is intended to or shall operate to create a partnership or joint venture of any kind between the parties, or to authorise either party to act as agent for the other, and neither party shall have authority to act in the name or on behalf of or otherwise to bind the other in any way



(including the making of any representation or warranty, the assumption of any obligation or liability and the exercise of any right or power).

13.9 Rights of Third parties

Subject to clause 3.4, a person who is not a party has no rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce, or to enjoy the benefit of, any provision of this Agreement but this does not affect any right or remedy of a third party which exists or is available apart from that Act.

13.10 Notices

13.10.1 All notices between the Parties with respect to the Agreement shall be in writing and signed by or on behalf of the Party giving it. Any notice shall be duly served (i) on delivery if delivered by hand, (ii) 48 hours after sending if sent by first class post or special or recorded delivery (or other "proof of delivery" or "proof of posting" service that Royal Mail may from time to time

offer) or (iii) on sending if sent by fax or email (provided that a copy is also sent by post), provided that in each case the notice is sent to the address of the addressee given at the start of the Agreement or such other address as the addressee may from time to time have notified for the purpose of this condition.

13.10.2 Any notice or communication given under the Agreement shall not be validly served if sent by text messaging via mobile phone.

13.11 Governing Law

The Agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it (including any non-contractual claims or disputes) shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of England and Wales.

13.12 Jurisdiction

In relation to any legal action or proceedings (a) arising out of or in connection with the Agreement or its implementation or effect or (b) relating to any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the Agreement, each of the Parties irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts and waives any objection to proceedings in such courts on the grounds of venue or on the grounds that proceedings have been brought in an inappropriate forum.

This Agreement has been entered into on the date stated at the beginning of it.
Signed for and on behalf of [The Supplier]:



	(Signature of director) Director	
	(name of director)	
Signed for and on behalf of		
Family Nursing & Home Care	(Signature) Position	
-	(name)	
SCHEDULE 1	Services	
The services to be provided by the Supplier are	e:	

SCHEDULE 2

Charges and other sums payable

Charges

[Details of charges and when payable if not monthly in arrears]

[Costs and expenses]

[set out position – or leave out]

[Increase in charges]

[The Supplier may with the prior written consent of the Customer review and increase any of the Charges with effect from [each anniversary] of the Commencement Date] by a percentage not greater than the increase in the retail prices index over the 6 month period up to date on which notice of increase is given. The Supplier shall give the Customer written notice of any such increase not less than 30 days before the date that the increase takes effect.]